
 

1 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

 

AGENDA 
 

November 2022 

 

 

 
 



 

2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
MINUTES OCTOBER 2022 .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

AGENDA ................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

NOVEMBER 2022 .................................................................................................................................................... 12 

CASE NO. 1 2704 COMPTON DR SW .................................................................................................................... 13 

SURVEY ................................................................................................................................................................ 14 

CASE NO. 2 1658 LAKE COVE DR SW ................................................................................................................. 15 

SURVEY PG. 1 ...................................................................................................................................................... 16 

SURVEY PG. 2 ...................................................................................................................................................... 17 

CASE NO. 3 103 13TH AV NW ................................................................................................................................. 18 

SURVEY ................................................................................................................................................................ 19 

CREMATORY DESCRIPITION ........................................................................................................................... 20 

EMISSIONS COMPARISON ................................................................................................................................ 21 

METAL BUILDING ILLISTRATION .................................................................................................................. 22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

 

Minutes October 2022 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mr. Steven Thomas, Rev. George Allen 

         

 SUPERNUMERARIES:   Mr. Larry Waye, Mr. Chester Ayers 

 

 COPIED TO:       Delayne Dean,  

 

OTHERS PRESENT:     Mrs. Ruth Priest, Asst. City Attorney  

           Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department 

            Mr. Bob Sims, Building Inspector 

           Mrs. Nancy Whiteside, Recorder 

 

Acting Chair, Larry Waye called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the council chambers on the first floor at City 

Hall.   

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, called the roll. 

 

POINT OF INFORMATION: Only four Board members are present at today’s meeting. A unanimous vote will 

be needed for any case to be approved.  Any applicant may have their case tabled until next month when five 

Board members may be present. 

 

 The minutes from the September 2022 meeting were approved.  Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve the 

minutes. Mr. Chester Ayers seconded the motion. On a voice vote, the motion carried.  

 

CASE NO. 1 

 

Application and appeal of Carey D. Wiggins for a use permitted on appeal for a 15-foot setback variance from 

Section 25-10.10 (2) (d) of the Zoning Ordinance in order to build a house located at 205 Church St. NW, property 

is located in a R-3 Single Family Residential District. 

 

Mr. Carey Wiggins presented this case to the Board. Mr. Wiggins stated his name was Carey Wiggins and his 

address is 1612 West Moulton St. 

 

Mr. Wiggins stated he was asking for a setback variance in order to build a house at 205 Church St NW. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye verified Mr. Wiggins was asking for the variance to build a new house at 205 Church St. NW. Mr. 

Wiggins agreed. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked for questions from the Board. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye verified Mr. Wiggins was only asking for a variance for the back of the property, Mr. Wiggins 

agreed. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked Mr. Wiggins if the variance was needed because of the size and angle the house would be 

positioned, Mr. Wiggins agreed 

 



 

4 

 

Mr. Wiggins also stated that years ago the city had purchased a portion of the property in order to widen Church 

St., which cut down the size of the lot in the front throwing the size of the property off in the back. 

 

Mr. Wiggins stated he was wanting to angle the house toward the river and to the East which gave him more of a 

variance. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked Mr. Wiggins if he had owned the property for a while. Mr. Wiggins stated he had owned 

the property for quite some time. 

 

There were no further questions from the Board or the public. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded the motion. On a 

roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of Joshua Wilshusen for a use permitted on appeal for a 6-foot side yard variance from 

Section 25-10.2 (2) (d) of the Zoning Ordinance in order add exterior access stairs to convert the attic to useable 

space, located at 1843 W. Brownstone Ct. SW, property is located in a R-6 Single Family Semi-Attached 

Residential District. 

 

Mr. Joshua Wilshusen presented this case to the Board. Mr. Wilshusen stated his name was Joshua Wilshusen and 

his address was 1843 W. Brownstone Ct. SW. 

 

Mr. Wilshusen stated he was asking to add an exterior staircase to the outside of his home from the attic space to 

make it more accessible. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye verified Mr. Wilshusen was asking for a 6-foot setback variance. 

 

Mr. Wilshusen stated that the platform he was wanting to build was only 4 feet wide but, his understanding was he 

needed to ask for a 6 foot variance because the zoning had changed since the property was originally built. 

 

Mr. Wilshusen stated there used to be a 10-foot setback variance and it was a 12-foot setback variance, if he 

understood correctly. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye stated that the setback variance was probably established when the home was made into a 2 story 

home, and requires a setback variance, Mr. Wilshusen agreed. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked Mr. Wilshusen if he wanted to build a staircase or if the staircase was already there. 

 

Mr. Wilshusen stated he wanted to build a staircase. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked Mr. Wilshusen if there is already a staircase there.  

 

Mr. Wilshusen stated that there is already a staircase there. 



 

5 

 

 

Mr. Wilshusen stated there was a misunderstanding when he pulled his permit. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked Mr. Wilshusen if he had built the staircase. 

 

Mr. Wilshusen stated he did build the staircase and had jumped the gun on obtaining a building permit. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked for further questions from the Board or the public. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Chester Ayers motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Steven Thomas seconded the motion. On a 

roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye encouraged Mr. Wilshusen to learn the process. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of Merry Albro for a use permitted on appeal for an 11.2-foot rear yard setback variance 

from Section 25-10.2 (2) ( e) of the Zoning Ordinance in order to place a 12-foot by 15-foot metal carport located 

at 1536 Georgetown St. SW, property is located in a R-6 Single Family Semi-Attached Residential District. 

 

Ms. Merry Albro presented this case to the board. Ms. Albro stated her name was Merry Albro and her address is 

1536 Georgetown St. SW. 

 

Ms. Albro stated she was asking for an 11.2-foot rear yard setback variance in order to put a metal carport on her 

property. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked for questions from the Board. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye verified that there would not be any sides added to the carport. Ms. Albro stated there would not 

be any sides added to the carport. 

 

There were no comments from the Board or the public. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded the motion. On a 

roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 4 

 

Application and appeal of Letco Medical, LLC. for an administration decision from Section 25-11 of the Zoning 

Ordinance in order to operate a warehouse located at 1801 Beltline Rd. #410, property of located in a B-4 Regional 

Shopping Business District. 



 

6 

 

 

Mr. Gabe Paluso presented this case to the Board. Mr. Paluso stated his name was Gabe Paluso and his address is 

1316 Commerce Dr. Decatur, AL.  

 

Mr. Paluso stated a brief history on Letco Medical and stated they were in need of a climate controlled warehouse 

space until they can get their 85 thousand square foot warehouse built, that will be located somewhere in Decatur, 

and came across the location at the mall where Bed Bath and Beyond used to be located. 

 

Mr. Paluso stated Letco Medical is asking for a temporary 3-year variance to use this spot as a warehouse until the 

new facility is constructed. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked for questions from the Board or the public. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas stated to Mr. Paluso that what is being requested is an appeal of an administration decision and 

what is being requested is not allowed. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye stated to Mr. Paluso that what he is asking for is an appeal of an administrative decision had 

already been made. 

 

 Mr. Paluso stated no and that he had gone to the building department to get the power transferred for the building 

and was informed that it was not zoned properly and that he would have to attend this meeting to request a 

variance from the current zoning.  

 

Mr. Paluso stated a decision had not been made administratively as far as he was aware it was just that the property 

was not currently zoned properly. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, if there were any current zoning laws and ordinances, 

if there were any use permitted, that would fit in what Mr. Paluso has described. 

 

Mr. Sims stated not in a B-4 Business Zoning District. Mr. Sims stated what is being requested is not permitted. 

And, it is not permitted on appeal because the appeal is prohibited. 

 

Mr. Sims explained that the request had to go before this board because the administrative decision had already 

been made that the business type requested is prohibited in a B-4 Business Zoning District. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye reiterated to Mr. Paluso that the ordinance does not allow your use even under an appeal. 

 

There was a discussion among several explaining how and why this type of business is prohibited. 

 

Mrs. Ruth Priest, Legal Department, stated the ordinance given by the state which explained why this is a 

prohibited request. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked for questions from the public. 

 

There were no comments from the Board or the public. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 



 

7 

 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded the motion. Mr. 

Chester Ayers, Larry Waye, and Steven Thomas all voted no on this motion Rev. George Allen voted yes. This 

request was denied with the count of 3 negative and 1 yay vote. 

 

Mr. Paluso asked what his next step would be since this request was denied.  

 

Mr. Paluso was told he could appeal the decision of this board to the circuit court. 

 

CASE NO. 5 

 

Application and appeal of Dewayne Eddy for INW, LLC. for an from Section 25-11 of the Zoning Ordinance in 

order to operate a hair salon located at 1317 14th Av SE, property is located in a MC Medical Center District. 

 

Mr. Dewayne Eddy presented this case to the Board. Mr Eddy stated his name is Dewayne Eddy and his address is 

297 Herring Rd, Hartselle. 

 

Mr. Eddy stated he was representing INW, LLC and they have a building located in the Medical District and they 

have a renter who is hoping to turn the building into a hair salon. 

 

Mr. Eddy stated it was advised to ask for an exception because with a hair salon there would be clients that comes 

from across the street from the assisted living.   

 

Mr. Eddy also stated there would be other services performed medically dealing with cancer patients. 

 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked for questions from the Board or the public. 

 

There were no comments from the Board or the public. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Chester Ayers seconded the motion. On a 

roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 6 

 

Application and appeal of Samuel T. Sharp for a use permitted on appeal from Section 25-12 from the Zoning 

Ordinance in order to have a group home located at 1306 Somerville Rd. SE, property is located in a MC Medical 

Center District. 

 

Mr. Samuel Sharp presented this case to the Board. Mr. Sharp stated his name is Samuel Sharp and his address is 

305 County Road 444, Hillsboro Al. Mr. Sharp stated he would like to make this residential home that is located in 

a medical center district into a group home. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye verified that the address of the home he is referring to is 1306 Somerville Rd SE, Mr. Sharp 

agreed. 



 

8 

 

 

Mr. Waye asked for questions from the Board. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas asked Mr. Sharp what the needs of the residents be who would be living in the home. 

 

Mr. Sharp stated the residents would be handicapped individuals. 

 

Mr. Sharp stated the name of the business that would be running the home would be M & M if the request passes. 

 

Mr. Thomas verified that Mr. Sharp would be only the land lord for the property, Mr. Sharp agreed. 

 

Mr. Thomas verified that Mr. Sharp was asking for the property to be used strictly as residential and the residents 

living there will not require medical attention, Mr. Sharp stated there would be some residents there who will 

require medical assistance. 

 

Mr. Thomas asked Mr. Sharp to give a better definition of what he means by medical assistance because it sounded 

like there may be some rehab or nursing home type facility that was going to be located there. 

 

Mr. Sharp agreed that the work there does come close to that type of work however; he would like to see it as a 

residence. 

 

Mr. Waye asked if the residents would be living there and how many would, there be living there. 

 

Mr. Sharp stated that the plan is for three to live there since it is a three-bedroom three-bath home. 

 

Mr. Thomas verified that residential use of a group home means that the sitters would not plan medical care that 

would be associated with a nursing home or such places.  

 

Mr. Sharp agreed to that interpretation and it is his understanding that the sitters are not nurses or doctors. 

 

Mr. Waye stated the sitters would provide making meals and provide transportation Mr. Sharp agreed. 

 

Mr. Waye asked for further questions from the Board or the public. There were no comments. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Chester Ayers seconded the motion. On a 

roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

9 

 

 

CASE NO. 7 

 

Application and appeal of Decatur Morgan Hospital for the following variances in order to install a 9-foot tall, 90 

square foot on premise directional signs at 1201 7th St. SE, property is located in a MC-Medical Center District. 

 

1. Sign A located at the corner of 7th St. and 14th Ave. 

a. 6.5 foot height variance from Section 25-73 (2) (ii) 

b. 86 square foot area variance from Section 25-73 (2) 

c. 20 foot setback variance from Section 25-20 

2. Sign B located at the corner of 8th St and 14th Ave. 

a. 6.5 foot height variance from Section 25-73 (2) (i) 

b. 86 square foot area variance from Section 25-73 (2) 

c. 20 foot setback variance from Section 25-20 

 

Ms. Kelly Powers and Eric Brenner presented this case to the Board. Mr. Brenner stated the address for the 

hospital as the address for both of them. 

 

Mr. Brenner stated the request was for a variance to add additional on premise directional signage due to the 

growth of our community. 

 

Mr. Brenner stated they have an influx of patients and new doctors.  

 

Mr. Brenner stated that at the Plaza II campus, the DOC Services had been added which has brought new patients 

and physicians, and with that expansion, the directional sign on the corner of 7th Av and 14th St and 8th Av and 14th 

St is needed to assist patients to get to the buildings. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked for questions from the Board or the public 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, had no comments. 

 

Mr. Matthew Marques, Planning Department, asked where the signs were going to sit. 

 

Mr. Sims explained by showing on the photos submitted by the applicants where the signs would be sitting. 

 

Mr. Waye asked for further questions from the Planning Department, there were no further questions. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded the motion. On a 

roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

 

CASE NO. 8 

 

Application and appeal of BNB Sign & Lighting Maintenance for a use permitted on appeal from Section 25-77 (e) 

(2) for a16.31 square foot area variance in order to install an additional signage to the building located at 1101 

Beltline Rd. SE, property is located in a B-2 General Business District. 

 

Mr. Jordan Handley presented this case to the Board. Mr. Handley stated his name was Jordan Handley and the 

business address is 2015 Seminole Dr. Huntsville, Al.  



 

10 

 

 

Mr. Handley stated that a 16.31 square foot area variance was being requested in order to place a Vetco sign on the 

Petco Building. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye inquired about Mr. Handley’s name not being on the application. 

 

Mr. Handley stated he was filling in for Tony Johnson, his boss, who could not be at the meeting. 

 

Mr. Handley was instructed to call Mr. Johnson and verify he was able to represent him at the meeting, Mr. 

Handley did so.  

 

Mr. Handley sign the application showing he was the presenter at today’s meeting. 

Mr. Johnson was instructed to initial the application and return it to the Building Department so the paper work 

could be updated. Mr. Johnson agreed to do so. 

 

Mr. Waye asked for further questions from the Board or the public, there were no comments. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded the motion. On a 

roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 9 

 

Application and appeal of Johntez and Nashanda Aldridge for a use permitted on appeal for a 14- foot front yard 

setback variance from Section 25-10.10 (2) (c) in order to build a new house located at 602 Church St. NW, 

property is located in a R-3 Single-Family Residential District. 

 

Mr. Matthew Ferguson from Compass Homes presented this case to the Board. Mr. Ferguson stated he was 

representing Johntez and Nashanda. 

 

Mr. Ferguson stated the request was for a 14-foot front yard setback variance in order to build a new house on 

Church Street.  

 

Mr. Ferguson stated if the variance is granted it would allow the new home to mimic the homes on the rest of the 

street. 

 

Mr. Ferguson stated that the home is a little larger with a garage that sits more forward and wanted to level that up 

with the neighbor and then the house extended behind it. But, it was needed to scoot that house up in order for the 

Aldridge’s to potentially have a garage behind them in the future. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked for questions from the Board or the public, there were no comments. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Chester Ayers seconded the motion. On a 

roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 

The Board discussed if a meeting would be held in the month of December. It was voted unanimously to NOT 

have a meeting during the month of December. The next regular BOZA meeting will be held the last Tuesday of 

the month January 31st 2023. 



 

11 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at 4:35 p.m. 

 

_________________________  

Larry Waye, Acting Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

12 

 

 

AGENDA  

November 2022 

The Board of Zoning Adjustment of the City of Decatur will hold a public meeting in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

ON THE FIRST FLOOR OF City Hall, 402 Lee Street NE, on Tuesday, November 29, 2022 at 4:00 p.m. And, 

also broadcast live on City of Decatur You Tube Channel at https://www.youtube.com/c/Cityof DecaturAl 
for the purpose of hearing the following applications and appeals at which time all interested parties are requested 

to the be present and will be given an opportunity to be heard. Questions may be submitted via email at 

bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov. 

 

CASE NO. 1 

 

Application and appeal of Francisco Rueda for an 18 foot rear yard set-back variance from Section 25-10.9 (2) (d) 

of the Zoning Ordinance in order to add a master bedroom and laundry room, property is located at 2704 Compton 

Dr. SW in a R-2 Single Family Residential District. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of Danny Hill for a 6-inch front yard set-back variance from Section 25-10.8 (2) (c) of the 

Zoning Ordinance in order to build a new home located at 1658 Lake Cove Dr. SW, property is located in an AG-1 

Agricultural District. 

                                   

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of Dexter Elliot for an administration decision from Section 25-11 of the Zoning Ordinance 

in order to operate a crematory in a 60 x 80 metal storage unit located at 103 13th Av. NW from Section 25-11, 

property is located in a B-2 General Business District. 

 

 

 

 

mailto:bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov


 

13 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 1 2704 COMPTON DR SW 



 

14 

 

 
 

 

 

SURVEY 



 

15 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 2 1658 LAKE COVE DR SW 



 

16 

 

 
 

 

 

 

SURVEY PG. 1 



 

17 

 

 
 

 

 

 

SURVEY PG. 2 



 

18 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 3 103 13TH AV NW 



 

19 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SURVEY 



 

20 

 

 
 

 

 

CREMATORY DESCRIPITION 



 

21 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EMISSIONS COMPARISON 



 

22 

 

 
 

 

 

 

METAL BUILDING ILLISTRATION 


